
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

May 15, 2015  

 

Via Electronic Mail & Facsimile  
LaCrosse Office  

U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service  

555 Lester Avenue 

Onalaska, WI 54650 

Fax: (608) 783-8452 

 

U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 

Office of Law Enforcement 

5600 American Boulevard, West, Suite 990 

Bloomington, MN 55437-1458 

Fax: (612) 713-5283 

 

Gregory Jackson 

Special Agent in Charge 

Law Enforcement 

1 Federal Drive 

Ft. Snelling, MN 55111 

FAX 612-713-5283 

E-mail: gregory_jackson@fws.gov

 

Re: Request for Endangered Species Act Investigation into the Death of a Karner blue 

butterfly 

 

Dear Law Enforcement Officers,  

 

On behalf of the Center for Biological Diversity, I am writing to urge the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 

Service (“Service”) to investigate and, if called for, prosecute violations of the Endangered 

Species Act (“ESA”), 16 U.S.C. §§ 1531-44.   

 

On May 4, 2015, Walt Pankowitz posted a video to the social media site Facebook in which he 

consumes what he says is an endangered Karner blue butterfly.
1
  Since 1992, Karner blue 

butterflies have been protected as an endangered species under the ESA.  Originally named for 

the location where they were first identified, Karner, NY, the butterflies are threatened by habitat 

destruction and fragmentation.
2
   

 

As you know, under the ESA, once a species is listed as endangered the prohibitions in Section 9 

of the Act automatically apply to the species.
3
  Section 9 of the ESA prohibits any “person” from 

“taking” or causing take of any member of an endangered species.
4
  The term “take” is defined 
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broadly meaning to “harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture, or collect, or to 

attempt to engage in any such conduct.”
5
   

 

The Service is empowered to prosecute “knowing” violations of the ESA and to seek civil 

penalties or criminal penalties and/or jail time for such violations.
6
  The legislative history of the 

ESA and several court decisions all indicate that such violations are general intent crimes.
7
 This 

means that to prosecute the person alleged to have violated the ESA, the Service is neither 

required to prove the alleged violator knew the species was endangered, nor that he knew it was 

illegal to kill it.
8
   

 

The video shows Mr. Pankowitz eating a butterfly and that is sufficient to prove a crime of 

general intent.
9
  However, the video along with Mr. Pankowitz’s titling thereof and his 

comments evidence that he intended to kill (e.g. eat) a butterfly he knew to be endangered.
10

  

While it requires the Service’s expertise to verify that the butterfly was a Karner blue butterfly, 

Mr. Pankowitz certainly intended to kill an endangered butterfly.  The ESA makes it a crime to 

“attempt to” take an endangered species.  Thus, the Service has sufficient evidence to pursue an 

investigation into whether civil penalties of up to $25,000 or criminal sanctions of up to a 

$50,000 fine or a year in prison are appropriate.
11

  We ask that you undertake this investigation 

and prosecute this violation to the fullest extent possible. 

 

On May 12, 2015, Mr. Pankowitz posted a statement on Facebook indicating he did not believe 

he would be prosecuted for his violation of the ESA.
12

 As a result, we are writing to urge the 

Service to take action and investigate and prosecute this violation of the ESA.  We often work 

with the Service to provide rewards to find individuals who kill ESA protected species, such as 

panthers and red wolves.  Here, Mr. Pankowitz has openly admitted to a violation of the ESA – 

i.e., killing an endangered species or attempting to do so.  Just because the species is a butterfly 

instead of mammal does not make this violation any less important to pursue or any less of a 

violation of the ESA and the purposes for which this law was crafted.   

 

Moreover, by using social media to promote his ESA violation Mr. Pankowitz is creating a 

precedent that needs to be halted before it is replicated.  With photos of hunters with rhinos, 

African lions, wolves, and other imperiled species being displayed and shared on social media, it 

is critical that the Service step-up its enforcement efforts and halt this trend of killing and 

bragging, which greatly threatens imperiled wildlife – big and small.   
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We stand ready to assist you in any way possible.  Unfortunately, as you know, citizens are not 

empowered to prosecute one time violations of the ESA.  Should you learn that Mr. Pankowitz 

intends to violate the Act again, we ask that you please share that information with us so we can 

evaluate our legal options.  Thank you for your attention to this matter and for all the work you 

do to defend and protect wildlife.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

Tanya Sanerib 

Senior Attorney  


